
 

COUNCIL 

BULLETIN 
 

 

Issue Number 04/2020 
Friday, 31 January 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Compiled, designed and produced by  
Member Services 
 
Contact: Kim Partridge  
Telephone: 01992 564443 
 
 

 
 

 



2 

 

 

PART A - FORWARD DIARY 

 

Key to abbreviations:  
     

CC       Council Chamber  Cab Off Cabinet Office  

CR1      Committee Room 1 CONF  Conference Room 
(1st floor) 
 

CR2      Committee Room 2  CH OFF Chairman of Council’s 
Office 
 

MR Members’ Room TR RM  Training Room 

TBD To be decided HEM Hemnall Street 
Offices. 

TBN      To be noted  HH Homefield House 

TBC   To be confirmed ESC Epping Sports Centre 

 
Other venues are shown in full. 



3 

 

Week One:  3 February 2020 – 9 February 2020 

 

Monday  
3 February 

6.30pm All Member 'Qualis' Workshop CR1 

Tuesday 
4 February 

 
7.00pm 

Licensing Sub-Committee - Cancelled 
Stronger Communities Select Committee 

 
CC 

Wednesday  
5 February 

6.30pm 
7.30pm 

Briefing - Area Planning Sub Committee East 
Area Planning Sub Committee East 

CR1 
CC 

Thursday  
6 February 

7.00pm Cabinet  CC 

Friday  
7 February 

   

Saturday  
8 February 

   

Sunday  
9 February 

   

 

Week Two:  10 February 2020 – 16 February 2020 

 

Monday  
10 February 

   

Tuesday 
11 February 

7.00pm 
7.00pm 

Joint Consultative Committee 
Epping Forest Youth Council 

CR1 
CC 

Wednesday  
12 February 

6.30pm 
6.30pm 
7.30pm 

Green Infrastructure Workshop 
Briefing - Area Planning Sub Committee West 
Area Planning Sub Committee West 

CR2 
CR1 
CC 

Thursday  
13 February 

   

Friday  
14 February 

   

Saturday  
15 February 

   

Sunday  
16 February 

   

 

https://eppingforestintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=316


4 

 

Week Three:  17 February 2020 – 23 February 2020 

 

Monday  
17 February 

   

Tuesday 
18 February 

   

Wednesday  
19 February 

   

Thursday  
20 February 

   

Friday  
21 February 

   

Saturday  
22 February 

   

Sunday  
23 February 

   

 

Week Four:  24 February 2020 – 2 March 2020 

 

Monday  
24 February 

6.30pm 
Cooperation for Sustainable Development 
Member Board 

CR1 

Tuesday 
25 February 

6.00pm 
 
7.30pm 

Member Briefing - Essex Police, Fire & Crime 
Commissioner 
Council 

CC 
 
CC 

Wednesday  
26 February 

6.30pm 
7.30pm 

Briefing - Area Planning Sub Committee South 
Area Planning Sub Committee South 

CR1 
CC 

Thursday  
27 February 

7.00pm Waste Management Task & Finish Panel  CR1 

Friday  
28 February 

   

Saturday  
1 March 

   

Sunday  
2 March 

   

 

https://eppingforestintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=814


5 

 

PART B - ESSENTIAL INFORMATION 

 

Committee Management System 
 
The members’ extranet facility for the Modern.Gov system is available at: 
 
https://eppingforestextranet.moderngov.co.uk/extranet 
 
Members may wish to save this link on their computer or mobile devices. Queries 
concerning login and password details for the extranet should be addressed to the 
Democratic Services Manager. 
 
Constitution 
 
The Council’s Constitution is available at: 
 
https://rds.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=638&Info=1 
 
Queries concerning the Constitution should be addressed to the Democratic 
Services Manager 

https://eppingforestextranet.moderngov.co.uk/extranet
mailto:democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk
https://rds.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=638&Info=1
mailto:democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk
mailto:democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk


6 

 

PART C - GENERAL INFORMATION 

 
 
1. ALL MEMBER 'QUALIS' WORKSHOP ON 3 FEBRUARY   
 

Members are invited to a workshop to be held on February 3rd at 6.30pm in 
Committee Room 1 to hear a presentation from legal advisors Penningtons on the 
Council Group Companies.   In order to ensure that there is effective governance of 
the companies there is a requirement to put in place several key documents to 
provide the framework for control of decision making, levels of authority and powers 
of delegation.    
 
The workshop is being held in advance of the 6th February Cabinet to give Members 
an opportunity to meet the legal advisors and ask questions on the proposals before 
papers are presented at the February Cabinet. 
 
(Further Information: Sacha Jevans ext 4229) 
 
2. CANCELLED MEETING   
 

Please note that the Licensing Sub-Committee on Tuesday 4 February 

2020 has been cancelled. 
 
3. CLIFTON ROAD LOUGHTON PARKING SUSPENSION  (Pages 13 - 14) 
 

Please see attached. 
 
4. CIVIC AWARDS INVITATION   
 

Members will by now have received an electronic invitation to the Civic Awards on 
Friday 20 March. If for any reason you have not received this invitation please 
contact Pat Seager on extension 4427 or by email pseager@eppingforestdc.gov.uk. 
 
Members are also reminded that replies to the invitation should be returned by 
Friday 14 February to ensure a place is reserved for you at this event. 
 
(Further information: Pat Seager ext 4427) 
 
5. NORTH WEALD HMRC UPDATE  (Pages 15 - 16) 
 

Following the conclusion of the withdrawal agreement leading to the exit of the UK 
from the EU on 31 January, HMRC has written to residents regarding the temporary 
Customs facility at North Weald Airfield.  
 
Please see attached a copy of the letter for your information. 
 
6. CONSULTATION ON STATEMENT OF PRINCIPLES UNDER THE GAMBLING 

ACT 2005  (Pages 17 - 46) 
 

Please see attached. 

mailto:pseager@eppingforestdc.gov.uk


7 

 
7. CHAIRMAN'S DIARY  (Pages 47 - 48) 
 

Please see attached. 



8 

 

LICENSING ACT 2003 

 

NPlease be advised that the Licensing Unit has received the following applications to 
vary a Premises Licence made under the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises below: 
 

 
Applicant name: Tom and Georgies Ltd 
 
Address of Premises: T &G’s Tapas Bar & Bistro, 154 High Road, Loughton, Essex, 
IG10 4BE 
 
Brief details of the nature of the application:  
 
Application to vary the Premises Licence under the Licensing Act 2003.  The 
proposed variation is to extend the hours for the Sale of Alcohol on the premises 
from 11:00 to 23:30 Monday to Sunday and to add Provision of Late Night 
Refreshment from 23:00 to 23:30. 
 
The standard opening hours of the premises will be 07:00 to 23:30 Monday to 
Saturday and 08:00 to 23:30 on Sunday. 
 
Consultation Period From: 23 January 2020 to 19 February 2020  
 
Officer in charge: Mrs Denise Bastick 
 

 
Please ensure that any comments/objections are received by the Licensing team on 
or before the consultation end date. 
 
Manager                           Kim Tuckey 01992 564034 
Licensing Compliance Officer    Debbie Houghton 01992 564336 
Licensing Compliance Officer   Handan Ibrahim 01992 564153 
Licensing Compliance Officer   Denise Bastick 01992 564334 
Licensing Compliance Officer   Hannah Gould 01992 564721 



9 

 

PLANNING 

 

1. Appeals Lodged 

 
EPF/1499/19 – Green View Bury Road E4 7QL - Application for Variation of 
Condition 2 "window openings in the flank elevations at first floor level fitted with 
obscured glass and fixed frames" for EPF/2416/16. (Minor material amendment to 
EPF/0447/13 (Conversion of existing dwelling house and pool house into six self-
contained flats. Extension of existing roof of dwelling by addition of front and rear 
dormer windows and a rear roof terrace area)) – Written reps – Alastair Prince ext. 
4462 

   
EPF/1632/19 – 178 Buckhurst Way Buckhurst Hill Essex IG9 6HZ - Proposed raised 
decking area – Householder appeal – Muhammad Rahman ext. 4415 

 
2.  Forthcoming Planning Inquiries/Hearings -  
 
Hearing – 28 January 2020 – EPF/1649/17 - White Rose Curtis Mill Lane Stapleford 
Abbotts Essex  RM4 1HS - Material change in use of land to provide for stationing of 
caravans for residential occupation by Gypsy family with associated hardstanding, 
fencing/gate, septic tank, gas tank (retrospective) – Sukhdeep Jhooti ext. 4298 
 
Inquiry – 11th – 14th February 2020 – EPF/1032/18 and LB/EPF/1036/18 - A new 
residential dwelling along with the demolition of derelict glasshouse structures and 
alterations to the historic garden wall – Caroline Brown ext. 4182 
 
Hearing – 8th and 9th July 2020 – EPF/3174/18 – Old Epping Laundry Site Bower Hill 
Epping CM16 7AD - Demolition of existing buildings and the erection of 58 no. 
residential units split between four blocks, along with internal landscaping and 
associated car and cycle parking – Sukhi Dhadwar ext. 4597 
 
3. Enforcement Appeals 

 
None this week 

 
4. Appeal Decisions 

 
EPF/0190/19 – 263 High Street Epping Essex CM16 4BP - Removal of existing 
windows and installation of replacement UPVC windows at the rear of the building – 
Allowed 
 
EPF/00199/19 – 263 High Street Epping Essex CM16 4BP - Grade II Listed Building 
permission for removal of existing windows and installation of replacement UPVC 
windows at the rear of the building – Allowed 
 
EPF/1242/19 – 36 Luxford Place Sheering CM21 9JB - Proposed two storey side 
extension with associated internal and external works – Allowed with conditions 
 



10 

EPF/1373/19 – 14 Upper Park Loughton Essex IG1- 4EW - Proposed two storey 
side extension, new roof forming a loft conversion with one front dormer and 
cladding to part of the front elevation – Allowed with conditions 
 
EPF/1748/19 – 81 High Road Buckhurst Hill Essex IG9 5SN - Extension to existing 
basement, 2.5m rear two storey extension, infill extension at first floor, enlargement 
and alterations to the roof form to facilitate creation of additional 3 x bedroom flats 
including 4 x bicycle parking spaces, bin storage area, landscaping and re-provision 
of retail floor space – Dismissed 
 
ENF/0348/19 – Bishops Brow Oak Hill Road Stapleford Abbotts RM4 1JL - Without 
planning permission the unauthorised erection of an outbuilding in the rear garden – 
Dismissed  
 
ENF/0386/18 – White Lodge Cottage Little Laver Road Little Laver CM5 0JF - 
Without planning permission the unauthorised demolition of a dwelling and erection 
of a new dwelling on the land 
 
5.  Tree Preservation Orders 
 
None this week  
 
6. S106 Agreements 
 
None this week  
 
7. Changes to Planning Systems 
 
None this week  



11 

 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER DECISIONS 

 

The notification of decisions taken by individual Portfolio Holders is no longer 
included in the Council Bulletin.  
 
All members of the Council receive automatic email notification of the publication of 
each individual Portfolio Holder decision and the call-in period for each decision 
commences immediately. Members wishing to call-in a decision should complete the 
attached call-in form and return it to Democratic Services before the expiry of five 
working days following the publication date of the decision. Members should refer to 
the Constitution (Article 6 - Overview and Scrutiny) for the rules of call-in. 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



From: Trevor Degville [mailto:Trevor.Degville@colchester.gov.uk]  
Sent: 26 January 2020 11:29 
To: James Warwick <JWarwick@eppingforestdc.gov.uk> 
Cc: Qasim Durrani <QDurrani@eppingforestdc.gov.uk>; Michael Adamson 
<Michael.Adamson@colchester.gov.uk> 
Subject: Clifton Road Loughton Parking Suspension 
 
CAUTION: This Message originated outside of Epping Forest District Council. Do not click links or open 
attachments unless you recognise the sender and know the contents is safe. 

 
Good morning James, 
 
I am writing to advise that we will be suspending some of the parking bays on Clifton Road Loughton 
due to utility works.  The parking bays to be suspended will be between numbers 1 – 13 from 11th 
and 19th Feb.  
 
This will cause problems for the permit holders due to the pressure on the limited number of parking 
spaces on Clifton Road.  In view of this any permit holders who cannot park on Clifton Road will be 
able to park in the nearby L3 permit scheme (Smarts Lane, High Beech Road and Forest Road).  This 
information will be advised to permit holders via MiPermit and on the suspension notices.  I don’t 
know if you want to advise local councillors as they may be asked about the suspension by the 
residents. 
 
Regards 
 

Trevor Degville 
Parking Technical Manager 
North Essex Parking Partnership 
01206 282316 
parkingpartnership.org/north 
 

Page 13

Agenda Item 3

mailto:Trevor.Degville@colchester.gov.uk
mailto:JWarwick@eppingforestdc.gov.uk
mailto:QDurrani@eppingforestdc.gov.uk
mailto:Michael.Adamson@colchester.gov.uk
https://protect-eu.mimecast.com/s/NBtmCA06tn07jtGrlQw?domain=parkingpartnership.org


This page is intentionally left blank



Dear resident or occupier,

We are writing to update you on recent developments for the nearby North Weald Airfield site, which we had 
planned to use as a temporary customs clearance facility.

You may be aware that a Special Development Order came into force on 9 September 2019 for the site, which 
granted temporary planning permission. We would have needed the facility if the United Kingdom had left the 
European Union without a deal.

For more details, go to www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2019/1228/contents/made

The site was due to be operational from 31 January 2020. However, we now know we will leave the EU on 
31 January under the terms of the Withdrawal Agreement. Consequently, the site is no longer needed for now, 
we will secure the premises whilst we review our requirements in the context of the UK’s future partnership  
with the European Union and we will update you on our decisions in the coming months.

If you have any questions or concerns, please contact HMRC by emailing 
bordersandinfrastructureteam@hmrc.gov.uk

Yours sincerely,

Tim Lai

Director - Borders Design to Delivery Directorate 
HMRC

EUEX1755C HMRC 01/20

EUEX1755C v1.0.indd   1 1/17/20   12:03 PM

Page 15

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Date: 22 January 2020  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Civic Offices 
 High Street 
 Epping 
 Essex  
 CM16 4BZ  
  
  

 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 
Consultation on Statement of Principles Under The Gambling Act 2005 
 
What’s this about? 
 
The Council’s Statement of Principles under the Gambling Act 2005 needs reviewing. A new draft 
Statement of Principles has been produced and we want to consult with all interested parties to 
consider comments before obtaining member approval and publishing the new document. 
 
What do I need to do? 
 
Please read the enclosed document and send any comments by 19 February 2020 to the 
Licensing Officer ideally by email to licensing@eppingforestdc.gov.uk, or by writing to: 
The Licensing Team Manager, Civic Offices, High Street, Epping CM16 4BZ 
The proposed changes to the existing document are highlighted as track changes for your 
convenience. 
 
What happens if I don’t? 
 
You run the risk of being required to comply with requirements made by the Council that you do not 
agree with. 
 
Further Information 
 
All licensing authorities are required to consult every three years on their Gambling Act 2005 
policy. Epping Forest DC is required under the Act to: 
 

 Be responsible for the licensing of premises where gambling activities are to take place by 
issuing Premises Licences  

 Issue Provisional Statements  

 Regulate members’ clubs and miners’ welfare institutes who wish to undertake certain 
gaming activities via issuing Club Gaming Permits and/or Club Machine Permits  

 Issue Club Machine Permits to Commercial Clubs  

 Grant permits for the use of certain lower stake gaming machines at unlicensed Family 
Entertainment Centres  

 Receive notifications from alcohol licensed premises (under the Licensing Act 2003) of the 
use of two or fewer gaming machines  

 Grant Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permits for premises licensed to sell/supply 
alcohol for consumption on the licensed premises, under the Licensing Act 2003, where 
more than two machines are required  

 Register small society lotteries below prescribed thresholds  
PTO 

 

 Issue Prize Gaming Permits  

Page 17

Agenda Item 6

mailto:licensing@eppingforestdc.gov.uk


 Receive and Endorse Temporary Use Notices  

 Receive Occasional Use Notices  

 Provide information to the Gambling Commission regarding details of licences issued (see 
section above on ‘information exchange) 

 Maintain registers of the permits and licences that are issued under these functions 
 
The Licensing Authority will not be involved in licensing remote gambling or individuals who 
operate gambling premises at all.  This falls to the Gambling Commission via Operator Licences 
 
In exercising most of its functions under the Gambling Act 2005, Epping Forest District Council, as 
the licensing authority, must have regard to the licensing objectives as set out in section 1 of the 
Act.  The licensing objectives are: 
 

 Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being associated with crime 
or disorder or being used to support crime 

 Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way 

 Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by 
gambling 

 
How is the scheme be administered? 
 
Applications will be made to the District Council who will issue the licences.  In most cases, 
applications will be considered by officers. Where representations are received, however, 
applications will be decided by Councillors meeting as a sub-committee. 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
 
 
K Tuckey 
Licensing Manager 
 
 

Page 18



1 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Gambling Act 2005 
 

Statement of Licensing Policy  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This policy will be reviewed in January 2022  

Page 19



2 

 

Contents 
PART A  The Licensing Objectives 3 

1. Introduction 3 

2. Declaration 4 

3. Responsible Authorities 4 

4. Interested Parties 5 

5. Exchange of Information 5 

6. Public Register 6 

7. Enforcement 6 

8. Licensing Authority Functions 7 

PART B PREMISES LICENCES 8 

1. General Principles 8 

2. Decision-making 8 

3. Definition of Premises 8 

4. Premises “ready for gambling” 10 

5. Location 10 

6. Planning 11 

7. Duplication with other Regulatory Regimes 11 

8. Licensing Objectives 12 

9. Local Area Profiles 13 

10. Conditions 14 

11. Applications and Plans 18 

12. Reviews 20 

PART C - PERMITS/TEMPORARY & OCCASIONAL USE NOTICE 21 

1. Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centre Gaming Machine Permits 21 

2. Alcohol Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permits 22 

3. Prize Gaming Permits 23 

4. Club Gaming and Club Machines Permits 23 

5. Temporary Use Notices 24 

6. Occasional Use Notices 24 

7. Small Society Lotteries 25 

APPENDIX A  TABLE OF DELEGATIONS OF LICENSING FUNCTIONS 26 

APPENDIX B  LIST OF CONSULTEES 27 

APPENDIX C    RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY’S FOR GAMBLING ACT 2005 APPLICATIONS 28 

 
 
This Policy Statement is effective from  July 2020 
  
All references to the Guidance refer to the Gambling Commission’s Guidance to Licensing 
Authorities, 5th Edition, published September 2015 and updated September 2016. 
 
  

Page 20



3 

 

 
 
PART A  The Licensing Objectives 
 

Fundamental Principles 

In exercising their functions under the Gambling Act 2005, Epping Forest District Council, as 
the Licensing Authority, will promote the licensing objectives as set out in Section 1 of the 
Act.   
 
The licensing objectives are: 
 

 Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being associated with 
crime or disorder or being used to support crime; 

 Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way; 
 Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by 

gambling. 
 

It should be noted that the Gambling Commission has stated: “The requirement in relation to 
children is explicitly to protect them from being harmed or exploited by gambling”. 
 
This Licensing Authority is aware that, as specified in Section 153, in making decisions 
about premises licences and temporary use notices it should aim to permit the use of 
premises for gambling in so far as it thinks it is: 
 

 in accordance with any relevant code of practice issued by the Gambling 
Commission; 

 in accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Gambling Commission; 
 reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives; 
 in accordance with this Statement of Policy. 

 
1. Introduction 
 
Epping Forest District Council (the Licensing Authority) is situated in the County of Essex, 
which contains twelve district or borough councils and two unitary authorities.  The district 
has six main centres of population (Buckhurst Hill, Chigwell, Epping, Loughton, Chipping 
Ongar and Waltham Abbey) and numerous picturesque villages and hamlets, but no natural 
centre.  The majority of the district lies within the Metropolitan Green Belt, designed to 
restrict the spread of London into the Home Counties. 
 
The district has a population of approximately *131,140 people, making it the sixth largest 
local authority area in Essex in terms of population size and equates to an estimated 
increase of 816 since the 2011 census (a rise of 0.63%) .  Approximately half of the 
population live in the southwest of the district (Buckhurst Hill, Chigwell and Loughton).  Most 
of the rest of the population live in a mixture of market towns, villages and rural hamlets.  
Epping Forest is similar to the county average for children and young aged 0-15 (18.9%), 16-
64 years old (61.4%)  and older people aged 65+ (19.6%). It is predicted that over the next 
15 years the age split of the population will change slightly with a small increase in the 
proportion of older people (20.76%) and a small decrease in the percentage of young people 
aged 0-17 (18.3%) and residents aged 18-64 (60.9%).  
 
* Data from Public Health Intelligence Research and Insight Essex County Council Sept 
2019 

Page 21



4 

 

 
Unemployment in the district is generally low and many residents enjoy a high standard of 
living, with Epping Forest representing the third highest (of 12) average income for Essex 
Districts .  However, there are also areas of significant disadvantage and the district has four 
of the wards amongst the ten most deprived in Essex. 
 
This Policy will be published every three years.  It will also be reviewed from “time to time” 
and where necessary, following consultation, it will be updated and re-published on the 
Council website. . 
 
The Gambling Act requires that licensing authorities consult with the following parties on the 
revision of their Licensing Policy:  
 
 The Chief Officer of Police; 
 One or more persons who appear to the authority to represent the interests of 

persons carrying on gambling businesses in the authority’s area; 
 One or more persons who appear to the authority to represent the interests of 

persons who are likely to be affected by the exercise of the authority’s functions 
under the Gambling Act 2005. 

 
The list of persons this authority consulted is attached as Appendix B.  The full list of 
comments made in response to the consultation is available via the Council’s website. 
 
The policy was approved at a meeting of the Full Council on XXX. Copies were placed in the 
public libraries of the area as well as being available in the Civic Offices and on the website 
in July 2020  
 
Should you have any comments as regards this policy statement please send them via email 
or letter to the following contact: 
 
Name:   Licensing Manager 
Address: Civic Offices, High Street, Epping, Essex CM16 4BZ 
E-mail:   licensing@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 
 
It should be noted that this policy statement will not override the right of any person to make 
an application, make representations about an application, or apply for a review of a licence, 
as each will be considered on its own merits and according to the statutory requirements of 
the Gambling Act 2005. 
 
2. Declaration 
 
In producing this policy, the Licensing Authority declares that it has had regard to the 
licensing objectives of the Gambling Act 2005, the Guidance issued by the Gambling 
Commission, and any responses from those consulted on it. 
 
3. Responsible Authorities 
 
The Licensing Authority is required by regulations to state the principles it will apply in 
exercising its powers under Section 157(h) of the Act to designate, in writing, a body which is 
competent to advise the authority about the protection of children from harm.  The principles 
are: 

 the need for the body to be responsible for an area covering the whole of the 
Licensing Authority’s area, and; 

Page 22



5 

 

 the need for the body to be answerable to democratically elected persons, rather 
than any particular vested interest group etc. 

 
This authority designates the Essex County Council’s Safeguarding Children Service for this 
purpose. 
 
4. Interested Parties 
 
Interested parties can make representations about licence applications or apply for a review 
of an existing licence.  These parties are defined in the Gambling Act 2005 as follows: 
 
“For the purposes of this Part a person is an interested party in relation to an application for 
or in respect of a premises licence if, in the opinion of the Licensing Authority which issues 
the licence or to which the applications is made, the person -  
 
(a) lives sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be affected by the authorised 

activities; 
 
(b) has business interests that might be affected by the authorised activities; or 
 
(c) represents persons who satisfy paragraph (a) or (b).” 
 
The Licensing Authority is required by regulations to state the principles it will apply in 
exercising its powers under the Gambling Act 2005 to determine whether a person is an 
interested party.  The principles are:   
 
Each case will be decided upon its merits.  This authority will not apply a rigid rule to its 
decision making.  It will consider the examples of considerations provided in the Gambling 
Commission’s Guidance for local authorities. It will also consider the Gambling 
Commission's Guidance that "has business interests" should be given the widest possible 
interpretation and include partnerships, charities, faith groups and medical practices. 
 
Persons who are democratically elected such as Councillors and MP’s may be Interested 
Parties.  No specific evidence of being asked to represent an interested person will be 
required as long as the Councillor/MP represents the ward likely to be affected.  Likewise, 
parish councils likely to be affected will be considered to be interested parties.  Other than 
these however, this authority will generally require written evidence that a person/body (e.g. 
an advocate/relative) ‘represents’ someone who either lives sufficiently close to the premises 
to be likely to be affected by the authorised activities and/or has business interests that 
might be affected by the authorised activities.  A letter from one of these persons, requesting 
the representation is sufficient. 
 
If individuals wish to approach Councillors to ask them to represent their views then care 
should be taken that the Councillors are not part of the Licensing Committee dealing with the 
licence application.   
 
5. Exchange of Information 
 
Licensing authorities are required to include in their statements the principles to be applied 
by the authority in exercising the functions under sections 29 and 30 of the Act with respect 
to the exchange of information between it and the Gambling Commission, and the functions 
under section 350 of the Act with the respect to the exchange of information between it and 
the other persons listed in Schedule 6 to the Act. 
 

Page 23



6 

 

The principle that this Licensing Authority applies is that it will act in accordance with the 
provisions of the Gambling Act 2005 in its exchange of information which includes the 
provision that the Data Protection Act 1998 will not be contravened.  The Licensing Authority 
will also have regard to any Guidance issued by the Gambling Commission on this matter, 
as well as any relevant regulations issued by the Secretary of State under the powers 
provided in the Gambling Act 2005.   
 
Should any protocols be established as regards information exchange with other bodies then 
they will be made available.   
 
 
6. Public Register 
 
The Licensing Authority is required to keep a public register and share information in it with 
the Gambling Commission and others (e.g. H.M. Revenue and Customs). A Public Register 
is available on the Councils website that includes a list of all current licensed premises and 
permits under The Gambling Act 2005 within its District  
 
7. Enforcement 
 
Licensing authorities are required by regulation under the Gambling Act 2005 to state the 
principles to be applied by the authority in exercising the functions under Part 15 of the Act 
with respect to the inspection of premises; and the powers under section 346 of the Act to 
institute criminal proceedings in respect of the offences specified. 
 
This licensing authority’s principles are that It will be guided by the Gambling Commission’s 
Guidance to Licensing Authorities and will endeavour to be: 
 

 Proportionate: and only intervene when necessary:  remedies will be appropriate to 
the risk posed and costs identified; 

 Accountable:  we will be able to justify decisions, and be subject to public scrutiny; 
 Consistent:  rules and standards will be joined up and implemented fairly; 
 Transparent:  we will be open, and keep regulations simple and user friendly; 
 Targeted:  we will be focused on the problem, and minimise side effects.  

 
In accordance with the Gambling Commission’s Guidance for local authorities, the Licensing 
Authority will endeavour to avoid duplication with other regulatory regimes so far as possible.   
 
This Licensing Authority has adopted and implemented a risk-based inspection programme, 
based on: 
 

 The licensing objectives; 
 Relevant codes of practice; 
 Guidance issued by the Gambling Commission, in particular at Part 36; 
 The principles set out in this statement of licensing policy. 

 
The main enforcement and compliance role for the Licensing Authority in terms of the 
Gambling Act 2005 is to ensure compliance with the Premises Licences and other 
permissions which it authorises.  The Gambling Commission is the enforcement body for the 
Operating and Personal Licences.  It is also worth noting that concerns about manufacture, 
supply or repair of gaming machines are not dealt with by the Licensing Authority but should 
be notified to the Gambling Commission. 
 

Page 24



7 

 

Bearing in mind the principle of transparency, this Licensing Authority’s enforcement / 
compliance protocols / written agreements will be available upon request to the Licensing 
Section, Civic Offices, High Street, Epping Essex CM16 4BZ and 
email:licensing@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 
 
8. Licensing Authority Functions 
 
The Licensing Authority is required under the Gambling Act 2005 to: 
 

 Be responsible for the licensing of premises where gambling activities are to take 
place by issuing Premises Licences; 

 Issue Provisional Statements; 
 Regulate members’ clubs and miners’ welfare institutes who wish to undertake 

certain gaming activities via issuing Club Gaming Permits and/or Club Machine 
Permits; 

 Issue Club Machine Permits to Commercial Clubs; 
 Grant permits for the use of certain lower stake gaming machines at unlicensed 

Family Entertainment Centres; 
 Receive notifications from alcohol licensed premises (under the Licensing Act 2003) 

of the use of two or fewer gaming machines; 
 Grant Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permits for premises licensed to 

sell/supply alcohol for consumption on the licensed premises, under the Licensing 
Act 2003, where more than two machines are required; 

 Register small society lotteries below prescribed thresholds; 
 Issue Prize Gaming Permits; 
 Receive and Endorse Temporary Use Notices; 
 Receive Occasional Use Notices; 
 Provide information to the Gambling Commission regarding details of licences 

issued; 
 Maintain registers of the permits and licences that are issued under these functions. 

 
The Licensing Authority is not involved in licensing remote gambling at all.  This is regulated 
by the Gambling Commission via Operating Licences. 
 
  

Page 25



8 

 

PART B PREMISES LICENCES 
 
1. General Principles  
 
Premises licences are subject to the requirements set-out in the Gambling Act 2005 and 
regulations, as well as specific mandatory and default conditions which are detailed in 
regulations issued by the Secretary of State.  Licensing authorities are able to exclude 
default conditions and also attach others, where it is believed to be appropriate. 
 
2. Decision-making 
 
The Licensing Authority is required by the Act, in making decisions about premises licences, 
to permit the use of premises for gambling in so far as it thinks it is: 
 

 in accordance with any relevant code of practice issued by the Gambling 
Commission; 

 in accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Gambling Commission; 
 reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives; and 
 in accordance with this licensing policy. 

 
It is appreciated that as per the Gambling Commission's Guidance to Licensing Authorities 
"moral objections to gambling are not a valid reason to reject applications for premises 
licences" (except as regards any 'no casino resolution' - see section on Casinos) and also 
that unmet demand is not a criterion for a licensing authority. 
 
3. Definition of Premises 
 
In the Act, "premises" is defined as including "any place".  Section 152 therefore prevents 
more than one premises licence applying to any place.  But a single building could be 
subject to more than one premises licence, provided they are for different parts of the 
building and the different parts of the building can be reasonably regarded as being different 
premises.  This approach has been taken to allow large, multiple unit premises such as a 
pleasure park, pier, track or shopping mall to obtain discrete premises licences, where 
appropriate safeguards are in place.  However, licensing authorities should pay particular 
attention if there are issues about sub-divisions of a single building or plot and should ensure 
that mandatory conditions relating to access between premises are observed. 
 
The Gambling Commission states that: “In most cases the expectation is that a single 
building/plot will be the subject of an application for a licence, for example, 32 High Street.  
But, that does not mean 32 High Street cannot be the subject of separate premises licences 
for the basement and ground floor, if they are configured acceptably.  Whether different parts 
of a building can properly be regarded as being separate premises will depend on the 
circumstances.  The location of the premises will clearly be an important consideration and 
the suitability of the division is likely to be a matter for discussion between the operator and 
the Licensing Authority. However, the Commission does not consider that areas of a building 
that are artificially or temporarily separated, for example by ropes or moveable partitions, 
can properly be regarded as different premises.”  
 
This Licensing Authority takes particular note of the Gambling Commission’s Guidance to 
Licensing Authorities which states that: licensing authorities should take particular care in 
considering applications for multiple licences for a building and those relating to a discrete 
part of a building used for other (non-gambling) purposes. In particular they should be aware 
of the following: 
 

Page 26



9 

 

 The licensing objective that seeks to protect children from being harmed by 
gambling. In practice that means not only preventing them from taking part in 
gambling, but also preventing them from being in close proximity to gambling. 
Therefore premises should be configured so that children are not invited to 
participate in, have accidental access to or closely observe gambling where they are 
prohibited from participating; 

 Entrances to and exits from parts of a building covered by one or more premises 
licences should be separate and identifiable so that the separation of different 
premises is not compromised and people do not “drift” into a gambling area. In this 
context it should normally be possible to access the premises without going through 
another licensed premises or premises with a permit; 

 Customers should be able to participate in the activity named on the premises 
licence. 

 
The Guidance also gives a list of factors which the Licensing Authority should be aware of, 
which may include: 
 

 Do the premises have a separate registration for business rates? 
 Is the premises’ neighbouring premises owned by the same person or someone 

else? 
 Can each of the premises be accessed from the street or a public passageway? 
 Can the premises only be accessed from any other gambling premises? 

 
This authority will consider these and other relevant factors in making its decision, 
depending on all the circumstances of the case.  
 
The Gambling Commission’s relevant access provisions for each premises type are 
reproduced below:  
 
Casinos 

• The principal access entrance to the premises must be from a street (as defined at 
7.23 of the Guidance); 

 
• No entrance to a casino must be from premises that are used wholly or mainly by 

children and/or young persons; 
 
• No customer must be able to enter a casino directly from any other premises which 

holds a gambling premises licence. 
 
Adult Gaming Centre 

• No customer must be able to access the premises directly from any other licensed 
gambling premises 

 
Betting Shops 

• Access must be from a street (as per para 7.23 Guidance to Licensing Authorities) or 
from another premises with a betting premises licence 

 
• No direct access from a betting shop to another premises used for the retail sale of 

merchandise or services. In effect there cannot be an entrance to a betting shop from 
a shop of any kind and you could not have a betting shop at the back of a café – the 
whole area would have to be licensed.  

Page 27



10 

 

Tracks 

No customer should be able to access the premises directly from a casino or an adult 
gaming centre. 
 
Bingo Premises 

No customer must be able to access the premise directly from a casino, an adult gaming 
centre or a betting premises, other than a track. 
 
Family Entertainment Centre 

No customer must be able to access the premise directly from a casino, an adult gaming 
centre or a betting premises, other than a track. 
 
Part 7 of the Gambling Commission’s Guidance to Licensing Authorities contains further 
guidance on this issue, which this authority will also take into account in its decision-making. 
 
 
4. Premises “ready for gambling” 

The Guidance states that a licence to use premises for gambling should only be issued in 
relation to premises that the Licensing Authority can be satisfied are going to be ready to be 
used for gambling in the reasonably near future, consistent with the scale of building or 
alterations required before the premises are brought into use.  
 
If the construction of a premises is not yet complete, or if they need alteration, or if the 
applicant does not yet have a right to occupy them, then an application for a provisional 
statement should be made instead.  
 
In deciding whether a premises licence can be granted where there are outstanding 
construction or alteration works at a premises, this authority will determine applications on 
their merits, applying a two stage consideration process: 
 

 Firstly, whether the premises ought to be permitted to be used for gambling; 
 Secondly, whether appropriate conditions can be put in place to cater for the situation 

that the premises are not yet in the state in which they ought to be before gambling 
takes place. 

 
Applicants should note that this authority is entitled to decide that it is appropriate to grant a 
licence subject to conditions, but it is not obliged to grant such a licence.  
 
More detailed examples of the circumstances in which such a licence may be granted can 
be found in the Guidance.  
 
5. Location  
 
This Licensing Authority is aware that demand issues cannot be considered with regard to 
the location of premises but that considerations in terms of the licensing objectives are 
relevant to its decision making.  As required by the Gambling Commission’s Guidance to 
Licensing Authorities, this authority will pay particular attention to the protection of children 
and vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling, as well as issues of 
crime and disorder.  The applicant must show that they have taken into account such issues 
as the proximity of schools, centres for vulnerable adults or residential areas with a high 

Page 28



11 

 

concentration of families with children. Should any other specific policy be decided upon as 
regards areas where gambling premises should not be located, this policy will be updated.  It 
should be noted that this policy does not preclude any application being made and each 
application will be decided on its merits, with the onus upon the applicant showing how 
potential concerns can be overcome. 
 
Applications will not be granted in sensitive locations unless relevant criteria are met, the 
criteria includes proximity to nearby schools or other institutions where there is a potential for 
vulnerable people to  be exposed to risks associated with gambling. 
 
Applicants will be expected to provide with their applications: 
 

 Details of how the premises will operate to restrict access from children and 
vulnerable people; 

 Whether a proof of age scheme is being used; 
 If an appropriate number of security staff are employed at appropriate times; 
 What the opening times are in order that they do not coincide with schools start and 

finish times. 
 
6. Planning 

The Gambling Commission Guidance to Licensing Authorities states: 
 
“In determining applications the Licensing Authority has a duty to take into consideration all 
relevant matters and not to take into consideration any irrelevant matters, i.e. those not 
related to gambling and the licensing objectives. One example of an irrelevant matter would 
be the likelihood of the applicant obtaining planning permission or building regulations 
approval for their proposal.” 
 
This authority will not take into account irrelevant matters as per the above guidance. In 
addition this authority notes the following excerpt from the Guidance:  
 
“When dealing with a premises licence application for finished buildings, the Licensing 
Authority should not take into account whether those buildings have or comply with the 
necessary planning or building consents.  Those matters should be dealt with under relevant 
planning control and building regulation powers, and not form part of the consideration for 
the premises licence.” 
 
Section 210 of the 2005 Act prevents licensing authorities taking into account the likelihood 
of the proposal by the applicant obtaining planning or building consent when considering a 
premises licence application.  Equally the grant of a gambling premises licence does not 
prejudice or prevent any action that may be appropriate under the law relating to planning or 
building. 
  
7. Duplication with other Regulatory Regimes 

Although the Licensing Authority seeks to avoid any duplication with other 
statutory/regulatory systems where possible, and will not consider whether a licence 
application is likely to be awarded planning or building consent, in its consideration of it, it 
will listen to, and consider carefully, any concerns about conditions which are not able to be 
met by licensees due to planning restrictions, should such a situation arise. 
 
 

Page 29



12 

 

When dealing with a premises licence application for finished buildings, this authority will not 
take into account whether those buildings have to comply with the necessary planning or 
buildings consents. Fire or health and safety risks will not be taken into account, as these 
matters are dealt with under relevant planning control, buildings and other regulations and 
must not form part of the consideration for the premises licence.  
 
8. Licensing Objectives 

Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being associated with crime 
or disorder or being used to support crime – This Licensing Authority is aware that the 
Gambling Commission will be taking a leading role in preventing gambling from being a 
source of crime.  The Gambling Commission's Guidance does however envisage that 
licensing authorities should pay attention to the proposed location of gambling premises in 
terms of this licensing objective.  Thus, where an area has known high levels of organised 
crime this authority will consider carefully whether gambling premises are suitable to be 
located there and whether conditions may be suitable such as the provision of door 
supervisors.  This Licensing Authority is aware of the distinction between disorder and 
nuisance and will consider factors (for example whether police assistance was required and 
how threatening the behaviour was to those who could see it) so as to make that distinction.   
 
Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way - This Licensing Authority has 
noted that the Gambling Commission states that it generally does not expect licensing 
authorities to be concerned with ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way 
as this will be addressed via operating and personal licences.  
 
Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by 
gambling - This Licensing Authority has noted the Gambling Commission's Guidance that 
this objective means preventing children from taking part in gambling (as well as restriction 
of advertising so that gambling products are not aimed at or are, particularly attractive to 
children).  The Licensing Authority will therefore consider, as suggested in the Gambling 
Commission's Guidance, whether specific measures are required at particular premises, with 
regard to this licensing objective.  Appropriate measures may include supervision of 
entrances / machines, segregation of areas etc. 
 
The council acknowledges that Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) does not just apply to 
children on licensed premises, particularly as children are not permitted access to most 
gambling premises, however applicants should be equally aware that children in the 
proximity of the premises that may be waiting for or seeking older persons.  There should be: 
 

 regular staff training and awareness raising programs; 
 regular patrols of the premises including adjoining or outside areas to identify 

children outside a licensed premises or meeting adults leaving a licensed premises; 
 raised awareness of children looking uncomfortable in the company of, or leaving a 

premises with, older people. 
 
The council does not wish to create an impression that all contact between adults and 
children is inappropriate, however, it is strongly advised that operators are aware of the risks 
of CSE and should proactively minimise the risk. 
 
This Licensing Authority is also aware of the Gambling Commission Codes of Practice as 
regards this licensing objective, in relation to specific premises.   
 
 
 

Page 30



13 

 

Codes of practice are either: 
 

 social responsibility code provisions - which must be adhered to by all licence 
holders; 

 ordinary code provisions - these do not have the status of licence conditions but 
failure to take account of them can be used as evidence in criminal or civil 
proceedings. 

 
 
Operators must comply with the code provisions covering risk assessments and local 
authority area profiles  
 
Assessing local risk  
Licensees must assess the local risks to the licensing objectives posed by the provision of 
gambling facilities at each of their premises, and have policies, procedures and control 
measures to mitigate those risks.  In making risk assessments, licensees must take into 
account relevant matters identified in the licensing authority's statement of licensing policy. 
 
Licensees must review (and update as necessary) their local risk assessments: 
 

 to take account of significant changes in local circumstances, including those 
identified in a licensing authority's statement of licensing policy; 

 when there are significant changes at a licensee's premises that may affect their 
mitigation of local risks; 

 when applying for a variation of a premises licence; and 
 when applying for a new premises licence. 

 
This Council will expect the local risk assessment to consider as a minimum: 

 the location of services for children such as schools, playgrounds, leisure/ community 
centres and other areas where children will gather; 

 the demographics of the area in relation to vulnerable groups; 

 whether the premises is in an area subject to high levels of crime and /or disorder; 

 local risk assessments should show how vulnerable people, including people with 
gambling dependencies are protected. 

 
The Risk Assessment should be kept on the individual premises and made available for 
inspection by the Licensing Authority on request. 
 
Sharing local risk assessments  
 
Licensees should share their risk assessment with licensing authorities when applying for a 
premises licence or applying for a variation to existing licensed premises, or otherwise on 
request. 
 
9. Local Area Profiles 

Risk assessments can make reference to the Council's Area Profile which may include 
reported gambling-related problems in an area. At the time of preparing this edition of the 
Statement of Licensing Policy there has been no evidence presented to Epping Forest 
District Council to support the assertion that any part had or is experiencing problems from 
gambling activities. This position will be kept under review and, in the event that it changes, 
further research will be carried out to discover the extent of the problems and to prepare an 
Area Profile accordingly. 

Page 31



14 

 

 
As regards the term “vulnerable persons” it is noted that the Gambling Commission does not 
seek to offer a definition but states that “it will for regulatory purposes to assume that this 
group includes people who gamble more than they want to; people who gamble beyond their 
means; and people who may not be able to make informed or balanced decisions about 
gambling due to a mental impairment, alcohol or drugs.”  This Licensing Authority will 
consider this licensing objective on a case by case basis.   
 
10. Conditions 

Any conditions attached to licences will be proportionate and will be: 
 

 relevant to the need to make the proposed building suitable as a gambling facility; 
 directly related to the premises and the type of licence applied for; 
 fairly and reasonably related to the scale and type of premises; and 
 reasonable in all other respects. 

 
Decisions upon individual conditions will be made on a case by case basis, although there 
will be a number of measures this Licensing Authority will consider utilising should there be a 
perceived need, such as the use of supervisors, appropriate signage for adult only areas etc.  
There are specific comments made in this regard under some of the licence types below.  
This Licensing Authority will also expect the licence applicant to offer their own suggestions 
as to ways in which the licensing objectives can be met effectively. 
 
This Licensing Authority will also consider specific measures which may be required for 
buildings which are subject to multiple premises licences.  Such measures may include the 
supervision of entrances; segregation of gambling from non-gambling areas frequented by 
children; and the supervision of gaming machines in non-adult gambling specific premises in 
order to pursue the licensing objectives.  These matters are in accordance with the 
Gambling Commission's Guidance. 
 
This authority will also ensure that where category C or above machines are on offer in 
premises to which children are admitted: 
 

 all such machines are located in an area of the premises which is separated from the 
remainder of the premises by a physical barrier which is effective to prevent access 
other than through a designated entrance; 

 only adults are admitted to the area where these machines are located; 
 access to the area where the machines are located is supervised; 
 the area where these machines are located is arranged so that it can be observed by 

the staff or the licence holder; and 
 at the entrance to and inside any such areas there are prominently displayed notices 

indicating that access to the area is prohibited to persons under 18. 
 
These considerations will apply to premises including buildings where multiple premises 
licences are applicable. 
 
This Licensing Authority is aware that tracks may be subject to one or more than one 
premises licence, provided each licence relates to a specified area of the track.  As per the 
Gambling Commission's Guidance, this Licensing Authority will consider the impact upon the 
third licensing objective and the need to ensure that entrances to each type of premises are 
distinct and that children are excluded from gambling areas where they are not permitted to 
enter. 
 

Page 32



15 

 

It is noted that there are conditions which the Licensing Authority cannot attach to premises 
licences, which are: 
 

 any condition on the premises licence which makes it impossible to comply with an 
operating licence condition; 

 conditions relating to gaming machine categories, numbers, or method of operation; 
 conditions which provide that membership of a club or body be required (the 

Gambling Act 2005 specifically removes the membership requirement for casino and 
bingo clubs and this provision prevents it being reinstated); 

 conditions in relation to stakes, fees, winning or prizes. 
 
This Licensing Authority will also consider specific measures which may be required for 
buildings which are subject to multiple premises licences.  Such measures may include the 
supervision of entrances; segregation of gambling from non-gambling areas frequented by 
children; and the supervision of gaming machines in non-adult gambling specific premises in 
order to pursue the licensing objectives.  These matters are in accordance with the 
Gambling Commission's Guidance. 
 
The Licensing Authority will specifically have regard to the need to protect children and 
vulnerable persons from harm or being exploited by gambling and will expect the applicant to 
satisfy the authority that there will be sufficient measures to ensure that under 18 year olds 
do not have access to the adult only gaming machine areas.  Appropriate licence conditions 
may cover issues such as: 
 

 Proof of age schemes; 
 CCTV; 
 Door supervisors; 
 Supervision of entrances / machine areas; 
 Physical separation of areas; 
 Location of entry; 
 Notices / signage; 
 Specific opening hours; 
 The location of gaming machines. 

 
This list is not exhaustive. 
 
Category C machines or above.  
 
This authority will also ensure that where category C or above machines are on offer in 
premises to which children are admitted: 
 

 all such machines are located in an area of the premises which is separated from the 
remainder of the premises by a physical barrier which is effective to prevent access 
other than through a designated entrance; 

 only adults are admitted to the area where these machines are located; 
 access to the area where the machines are located is supervised; 
 the area where these machines are located is arranged so that it can be observed by 

the staff or the licence holder; and 
 at the entrance to and inside any such areas there are prominently displayed notices 

indicating that access to the area is prohibited to persons under 18. 
 
These considerations will apply to premises including buildings where multiple premises 
licences are applicable. 
 

Page 33



16 

 

Door Supervisors 
 
The Gambling Commission advises in its Guidance to Licensing Authorities that if a 
Licensing Authority is concerned that a premises may attract disorder or be subject to 
attempts at unauthorised access (for example by children and young persons) then it may 
require that the entrances to the premises are controlled by a door supervisor, and is entitled 
to impose a premises licence condition to this effect.  
 
Where it is decided that supervision of entrances/machines is appropriate for particular 
cases, a consideration of whether these need to be SIA licensed or not will be necessary.  It 
will not be automatically assumed that they need to be licensed, as the statutory 
requirements for different types of premises vary (as per the Guidance, Part 33). 
 
Credit 
 
Credit facilities are prohibited from being provided in casinos and bingo licensed premises.  
Cash machines (ATM’s) may be installed in such premises but the licensing authority may 
apply conditions as to where they are sited. 
 
Adult Gaming Centres and Licensed Family Entertainment Centres 
 
This Licensing Authority will specifically have regard to the need to protect children and 
vulnerable persons from harm or being exploited by gambling and will expect the applicant to 
satisfy the authority that there will be sufficient measures to, for example, ensure that under 
18 year olds do not have access to the premises.   
 
This Licensing Authority may consider measures to meet the licensing objectives such as: 
 

 Proof of age schemes; 
 CCTV; 
 Supervision of entrances / machine areas; 
 Physical separation of areas; 
 Location of entry; 
 Notices / signage; 
 Specific opening hours; 
 Self-exclusion schemes; 
 Provision of information leaflets / helpline numbers for organisations such as 

GamCare. 
 
This list is not mandatory, nor exhaustive, and is merely indicative of example measures. 
 
Casinos 
 
The Licensing Authority has not passed a ‘no casino’ resolution under Section 166 of the 
Gambling Act 2005, but is aware that it has the power to do so.   Should this Licensing 
Authority decide in the future to pass such a resolution, it will update this policy statement 
with details of that resolution.  Any such resolution will be made by Full Council. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 34



17 

 

Bingo premises 
 
This Licensing Authority notes that the Gambling Commission’s Guidance states: 
 
Licensing authorities will need to satisfy themselves that bingo can be played in any bingo 
premises for which they issue a premises licence. This will be a relevant consideration 
where the operator of an existing bingo premises applies to vary their licence to exclude an 
area of the existing premises from its ambit and then applies for a new premises licence, or 
multiple licences, for that or those excluded areas.  
 
This authority also notes the Guidance regarding the unusual circumstances in which the 
splitting of a pre-existing premises into two adjacent premises might be permitted, and in 
particular that it is not permissible to locate sixteen category B3 gaming machines in one of 
the resulting premises, as the gaming machine entitlement for that premises would be 
exceeded.  
 
Children and young people are allowed to enter bingo premises; however they are not 
permitted to participate in bingo and if category B or C machines are available for use these 
must be separated from areas where children and young people are allowed.” 
 
Betting Premises 
 
Betting machines - This Licensing Authority will, in accordance with the Gambling 
Commission's Guidance, take into account the size of the premises, the number of counter 
positions available for person-to-person transactions, and the ability of staff to monitor the 
use of the machines by children and young persons (it is an offence for those under 18 to 
bet) or by vulnerable people, when considering the number/nature/circumstances of betting 
machines an operator wants to offer. 
 
Fixed Odds Betting Terminals (FOBT’s) 
 
In respect to nationally expressed concerns that exist in relation to the potentially adverse 
impact FOBT’s may have on vulnerable groups of adults, The Licensing Authority will give 
apply conditions to betting shop premises licences including, but not limited to, setting out 
minimum staffing levels to ensure sufficient staff are on the premises to comprehensively 
promote responsible gambling, adequately protect players, particularly in relation to those 
who are deemed to be vulnerable and to prevent under 18 year olds accessing gambling 
facilities. 
 
In particular, applicants will be expected to show how they will prevent access to under 18’s. 
 
Tracks 
 
This Licensing Authority is aware that tracks may be subject to one or more than one 
premises licence, provided each licence relates to a specified area of the track.  In 
accordance with the Gambling Commission's Guidance, this Licensing Authority will 
especially consider the impact upon the third licensing objective (i.e. the protection of 
children and vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling) and the need 
to ensure that entrances to each type of premises are distinct and that children are excluded 
from gambling areas where they are not permitted to enter. 
 
This authority will therefore expect the premises licence applicant to demonstrate suitable 
measures to ensure that children do not have access to adult only gaming facilities.  It is 
noted that children and young persons will be permitted to enter track areas where facilities 

Page 35



18 

 

for betting are provided on days when dog-racing and/or horse racing takes place, but that 
they are still prevented from entering areas where gaming machines (other than category D 
machines) are provided. 
 
This Licensing Authority may consider measures to meet the licensing objectives such as 
those outlined above. 
 
Gaming machines - Where the applicant holds a pool betting operating licence and is going 
to use the entitlement to four gaming machines, machines (other than category D machines) 
should be located in areas from which children are excluded.  
 
Betting machines - This Licensing Authority will, as per Part 6 of the Gambling Commission's 
Guidance, take into account the size of the premises and the ability of staff to monitor the 
use of the machines by children and young persons (it is an offence for those under 18 to 
bet) or by vulnerable people, when considering the number/nature/circumstances of betting 
machines an operator proposes to offer. 
 
The Local Authority consider a gaming machine is ‘available for use’ if a player can take 
steps to play it without the assistance of the operator. Where more than the permitted 
number of machines are physically located on a premises, licensees will need to 
demonstrate that no more than the permitted number are ‘available for use’ at any one time 
 
11. Applications and Plans  

The Gambling Act (s51) requires applicants to submit plans of the premises with their 
application, in order to ensure that the Licensing Authority has the necessary information to 
make an informed judgement about whether the premises are fit for gambling. The plan will 
also be used for the Licensing Authority to plan future premises inspection activity.  
 
Plans for tracks do not need to be in a particular scale but should be drawn to scale and 
should be sufficiently detailed to include the information required by regulations. 
 
Some tracks may be situated on agricultural land where the perimeter is not defined by 
virtue of an outer wall or fence, such as point-to-point racetracks. In such instances, where 
an entry fee is levied, track premises licence holders may erect temporary structures to 
restrict access to premises. 
 
In the rare cases where the outer perimeter cannot be defined, it is likely that the track in 
question will not be specifically designed for the frequent holding of sporting events or races. 
In such cases betting facilities may be better provided through occasional use notices where 
the boundary premises do not need to be defined. 
 
This authority appreciates that it is sometimes difficult to define the precise location of 
betting areas on tracks. The precise location of where betting facilities are provided is not 
required to be shown on track plans, both by virtue of the fact that betting is permitted 
anywhere on the premises and because of the difficulties associated with pinpointing exact 
locations for some types of track. Applicants should provide sufficient information that this 
authority can satisfy itself that the plan indicates the main areas where betting might take 
place. For racecourses in particular, any betting areas subject to the “five times rule” 
(commonly known as betting rings) must be indicated on the plan.  
 
Travelling Fairs 
 

Page 36



19 

 

It will fall to the Licensing Authority to decide whether, where category D machines and/or 
equal chance prize gaming without a permit is to be made available for use at travelling fairs, 
the statutory requirement that the facilities for gambling amount to no more than an ancillary 
amusement at the fair is met. 
 
The Licensing Authority will also consider whether the applicant falls within the statutory 
definition of a travelling fair. 
 
It has been noted that the 27-day statutory maximum for the land being used as a fair, is per 
calendar year, and that it applies to the piece of land on which the fairs are held, regardless 
of whether it is the same or different travelling fairs occupying the land.  The Licensing 
Authority will work with its neighbouring authorities to ensure that land which crosses our 
boundaries is monitored so that the statutory limits are not exceeded. 
 
Provisional Statements 
 
Developers may wish to apply to this authority for provisional statements before entering into 
a contract to buy or lease property or land to judge whether a development is worth taking 
forward in light of the need to obtain a premises licence. There is no need for the applicant to 
hold an operating licence in order to apply for a provisional statement.  
 
S204 of the Gambling Act provides for a person to make an application to the Licensing 
Authority for a provisional statement in respect of premises that he or she: 
 

 expects to be constructed; 
 expects to be altered; or 
 expects to acquire a right to occupy. 

 
The process for considering an application for a provisional statement is the same as that for 
a premises licence application. The applicant is obliged to give notice of the application in 
the same way as applying for a premises licence. Responsible authorities and interested 
parties may make representations and there are rights of appeal.  
 
In contrast to the premises licence application, the applicant does not have to hold or have 
applied for an operating licence from the Gambling Commission (except in the case of a 
track) and they do not have to have a right to occupy the premises in respect of which their 
provisional application is made.  
 
The holder of a provisional statement may then apply for a premises licence once the 
premises are constructed, altered or acquired. The Licensing Authority will be constrained in 
the matters it can consider when determining the premises licence application, and in terms 
of representations about premises licence applications that follow the grant of a provisional 
statement, no further representations from relevant authorities or interested parties can be 
taken into account unless: 
 

 they concern matters which could not have been addressed at the provisional 
statement stage; or 

  they reflect a change in the applicant’s circumstances.   
 
In addition, the authority may refuse the premises licence (or grant it on terms different to 
those attached to the provisional statement) only by reference to matters: 
 

 which could not have been raised by objectors at the provisional licence stage; or 
 which, in the authority’s opinion, reflect a change in the operator’s circumstances. 

Page 37



20 

 

 
Where the premises has not been constructed in accordance with the plan and information 
submitted with the provisional statement application.  This must be a substantial change 
from the plan and licensing authorities should discuss any concerns they have with the 
applicant before making a decision. 
 

12. Reviews 

Requests for a review of a premises licence can be made by interested parties or 
responsible authorities.  It is for the Licensing Authority, however, to decide whether the 
review is to be carried-out.  This will be on the basis of whether the request for the review is 
relevant to the matters listed below, as well as consideration as to whether the request is 
frivolous, vexatious, repetitious, or will certainly not cause this authority to wish to alter, 
revoke or suspend the licence. 
 

Reviews will be carried out: 
 

 in accordance with any relevant code of practice issued by the Gambling 
Commission; 

 in accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Gambling Commission; 
 if the request is reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives; and 
 in accordance with this statement of licensing principles. 

 

The Licensing Authority can also initiate a review of a licence for any reason which it thinks 
is appropriate. 
 

Once a valid application for a review has been received by the licensing authority, 
representations can be made by responsible authorities and interested parties during a 28 
day period.  This period begins 7 days after the application was received by the licensing 
authority, who will publish notice of the application within 7 days of receipt. 
 

The Licensing Authority must carry out the review as soon as possible after the 28 day 
period for making representations has passed.  
 

The purpose of the review will be to determine whether the Licensing Authority should take 
any action in relation to the licence. If action is justified, the options open to the Licensing 
Authority are: 
 

 add, remove or amend a licence condition imposed by the licensing authority; 
 exclude a default condition imposed by the Secretary of State (e.g. opening hours) or 

remove or amend such an exclusion; 
 suspend the premises licence for a period not exceeding three months; 
 revoke the premises licence. 

 

In determining what action, if any, should be taken following a review, the Licensing 
Authority must have regard to the principles set out in section 153 of the Act, as well as any 
relevant representations. 
 

In particular, the Licensing Authority may also initiate a review of a premises licence on the 
grounds that a premises licence holder has not provided facilities for gambling at the 
premises. This is to prevent people from applying for licences in a speculative manner 
without intending to use them. 
 

Page 38



21 

 

Once the review has been completed, the Licensing Authority must, as soon as possible, 
notify its decision to: 
 

 the licence holder; 
 the applicant for review (if any); 
 the Commission; 
 any person who made representations; 
 the chief officer of police or chief constable; and 
 Her Majesty’s Commissioners for Revenue and Customs. 

 

PART C - PERMITS/TEMPORARY & OCCASIONAL USE NOTICE 

1. Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centre Gaming Machine Permits 
 
Where a premises does not hold a Premises Licence but wishes to provide gaming 
machines, it must apply to the Licensing Authority for a permit.  It should be noted that the 
applicant must show that the premises will be wholly or mainly used for making gaming 
machines available for use. 
 
The Gambling Act 2005 states that a Licensing Authority may prepare a statement of 
principles that they propose to consider in determining the suitability of an applicant for a 
permit and in preparing this statement, and/or considering applications, it need not (but may) 
have regard to the licensing objectives and shall have regard to any relevant guidance 
issued by the Commission under section 25.  The Gambling Commission’s Guidance to 
Licensing Authorities also states: “In their three year licensing policy statement, licensing 
authorities may include a statement of principles that they propose to apply when exercising 
their functions in considering applications for permits…., licensing authorities will want to 
give weight to child protection issues."  
 
Guidance also states: “...An application for a permit may be granted only if the Licensing 
Authority is satisfied that the premises will be used as an unlicensed FEC, and if the chief 
officer of police has been consulted on the application....Licensing authorities might wish to 
consider asking applications to demonstrate: 
 

 a full understanding of the maximum stakes and prizes of the gambling that is 
permissible in unlicensed FECs; 

 that the applicant has no relevant convictions (those that are set out in Schedule 7 of 
the Act); and 

 that staff are trained to have a full understanding of the maximum stakes and prizes.  
 
It should be noted that a Licensing Authority cannot attach conditions to this type of permit. 
 
Statement of Principles This Licensing Authority will expect the applicant to show that there 
are policies and procedures in place to protect children from harm.  Harm in this context is 
not limited to harm from gambling but includes wider child protection considerations.  The 
efficiency of such policies and procedures will each be considered on their merits, however, 
they may include appropriate measures / training for staff as regards suspected truant 
school children on the premises, measures / training covering how staff would deal with 
unsupervised very young children being on the premises, or children causing perceived 
problems on / around the premises, CRB checks for staff.   
 
This Licensing Authority will also expect, as per Gambling Commission Guidance, that 
applicants demonstrate a full understanding of the maximum stakes and prizes of the 

Page 39



22 

 

gambling that is permissible in unlicensed FECs, that the applicant has no relevant 
convictions (those that are set out in Schedule 7 of the Act) and that staff are trained to have 
a full understanding of the maximum stakes and prizes. 
 

2. Alcohol Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permits  
 
Automatic Entitlement: 2 machines 
 
Premises licensed to sell alcohol for consumption on the premises may automatically have 
two gaming machines, of categories C and/or D.  The premises must notify the Licensing 
Authority of their intention to exercise this right, but they may remove this automatic 
authorisation in respect of any particular premises if: 
 

 provision of the machines is not reasonably consistent with the pursuit of the 
licensing objectives; 

 gaming has taken place on the premises that breaches a condition of section 282 of 
the Gambling Act (i.e. that written notice has been provided to the licensing authority, 
that a fee has been provided and that any relevant code of practice issued by the 
Gambling Commission about the location and operation of the machine has been 
complied with); 

 the premises are mainly used for gaming; or 
 an offence under the Gambling Act has been committed on the premises. 

 
Permit for three or more machines 
 
If a premises wishes to have more than two machines, then it must apply for a permit.  The 
Licensing Authority will consider the application based upon the licensing objectives, any 
guidance issued by the Gambling Commission issued under Section 25 of the Gambling Act 
2005, and such matters as it thinks relevant.   
 
Each case will be considered on its merits, but, generally, it will consider the need to protect 
children and vulnerable persons from harm or being exploited by gambling and will expect 
the applicant to satisfy them that there will be sufficient measures to ensure that under 18 
year olds do not have access to “adult only” gaming machines.  Measures which will satisfy 
the authority that there will be no access may include: 
 

 Supervision of machine areas; 
 Physical separation of areas; 
 Notices / signage; 
 The location of gaming machines 

 
This list is not exhaustive. 
 
As regards the protection of vulnerable persons, the Licensing Authority will consider 
measures such as the use of self-barring schemes, provision of information leaflets/helpline 
numbers for organisations such as GamCare.  It should be noted that the Licensing Authority 
can decide to grant the application with a smaller number of machines and/or a different 
category of machines than that applied for.  Conditions (other than these) cannot be 
attached.  It should also be noted that the holder of a permit must comply with any Code of 
Practice issued by the Gambling Commission about the location and operation of the 
machine. Where an alcohol licensed premises applies for a premises licence for their non-
alcohol licensed areas, any such application would need to be applied for, and will be dealt 
with, as an Adult Entertainment Centre premises licence. 

Page 40



23 

 

 
3. Prize Gaming Permits  

 
The Gambling Act 2005 states that a Licensing Authority may “prepare a statement of 
principles that they propose to apply in exercising their functions under this Schedule” which 
“may, in particular, specify matters that the Licensing Authority proposes to consider in 
determining the suitability of the applicant for a permit”.   
 
This Licensing Authority has prepared a Statement of Principles which is that the applicant 
should set out the types of gaming that he or she is intending to offer and that the applicant 
should be able to demonstrate:  
 

 that they understand the limits to stakes and prizes that are set out in Regulations; 
 that the gaming offered is within the law; 
 clear policies that outline the steps to be taken to protect children from harm; 
 training to cover how staff would deal with unsupervised and/or very young children 

on/around the premises and suspected truants. 
 
In making its decision on an application for this permit the Licensing Authority does not need 
to (but may) have regard to the licensing objectives but must have regard to any Gambling 
Commission guidance. 
 
Applicants for a permit must comply with the conditions laid down by the Gambling Act 2005.  
 
The conditions in the Act are: 
 

 the limits on participation fees, as set out in regulations, must be complied 
with; 

 all chances to participate in the gaming must be allocated on the premises on 
which the gaming is taking place and on one day; the game must be played 
and completed on the day the chances are allocated; and the result of the 
game must be made public in the premises on the day that it is played;  

 the prize for which the game is played must not exceed the amount set out in 
regulations (if a money prize), or the prescribed value (if non-monetary prize); 
and 

 participation in the gaming must not entitle the player to take part in any other 
gambling. 

 
The Licensing Authority may not impose any further conditions. 
 
 

4. Club Gaming and Club Machines Permits 

Qualifying members clubs and Miners’ welfare institutes (but not commercial clubs) may 
apply for a Club Gaming Permit, The Club Gaming Permit will enable the premises to 
provide gaming machines (3 machines of categories B, C or D).  NB Commercial Clubs may 
not site category B3A gaming machines offering lottery games in their club.  
 
Gambling Commission Guidance states: "Members’ clubs must have at least 25 members 
and be established and conducted “wholly or mainly” for purposes other than gaming, unless 
the gaming is permitted by separate regulations.”  It is anticipated that this will cover bridge 
and whist clubs.  A members’ club must be permanent in nature, not established to make 
commercial profit, and controlled by its members equally.  Examples include working men’s 
clubs, branches of Royal British Legion and clubs with political affiliations. 

Page 41



24 

 

 
The Licensing Authority is aware that it may only refuse an application on the grounds that: 
 

 the applicant does not fulfil the requirements for a members’ or commercial club or 
miners’ welfare institute and therefore is not entitled to receive the type of permit for 
which it has applied; 

 the applicant’s premises are used wholly or mainly by children and/or young persons; 
 an offence under the Act or a breach of a permit has been committed by the 

applicant while providing gaming facilities; 
 a permit held by the applicant has been cancelled in the previous ten years; or 
 an objection has been lodged by the Commission or the police. 

 
Where a premises holds a Club Premises Certificate under the Licensing Act 2003 they may 
apply using the fast-track procedure.  As the Gambling Commission’s Guidance to Licensing 
Authorities states: "Under the fast-track procedure there is no opportunity for objections to 
be made by the Commission or the police, and the grounds on which an application under 
the process may be refused are: 
 

 that the club is established primarily for gaming, other than gaming prescribed under 
schedule 12; 

 that in addition to the prescribed gaming, the applicant provides facilities for other 
gaming; or 

 that a club gaming permit or club machine permit issued to the applicant in the last 
ten years has been cancelled. 

 
Objections will not be lodged by the Commission or the police, as these will have been dealt 
with under the Licensing Act application procedure. 
 
There are statutory conditions on club gaming permits that no child uses a category B or C 
machine on the premises and that the holder complies with any relevant provision of a code 
of practice about the location and operation of gaming machines. 
 

5. Temporary Use Notices 
 
Temporary Use Notices allow the use of premises for gambling where there is no premises 
licence but where a gambling operator wishes to use the premises temporarily for providing 
facilities for gambling.  Premises that might be suitable for Temporary Use Notices, 
according to the Gambling Commission, would include hotels, conference centres and 
sporting venues. 
 
The Licensing Authority can only grant a Temporary Use Notice to a person or company 
holding a relevant operating licence, i.e. a non-remote casino operating licence.  
 
The Secretary of State has the power to determine what form of gambling can be authorised 
by Temporary Use Notices. The Gambling Act 2005 (Temporary Use Notices) Regulations 
2007 state that Temporary Use Notices can only be used to permit the provision of facilities 
or equal chance gaming, where the gaming is intended to produce a single winner, which in 
practice means poker tournaments. 
 
This Licensing Authority expects to object to notices where it appears that their effect would 
be to permit regular gambling in a place that could be described as one set of premises, as 
recommended in the Gambling Commission’s Guidance to Local Authorities. 
 

6. Occasional Use Notices 

Page 42



25 

 

 
The Licensing Authority has little discretion as regards these Notices, aside from ensuring 
that the statutory eight days in a calendar year is not exceeded and will grant such notices 
where statutory requirements are met. 
 

7. Small Society Lotteries 
 
Lottery licences will be issued in accordance with the Gambling Commission’s Guidance to 
Local Authorities. 
  

Page 43



26 

 

APPENDIX A  TABLE OF DELEGATIONS OF LICENSING FUNCTIONS 

MATTER TO BE DEALT WITH FULL 

COUNCIL 

SUB-COMMITTEE OFFICERS 

Three year licensing policy X   

Policy not to permit casinos X   

Fee Setting - when appropriate 
 

 (to be approved by 

Executive) 

Application for premises licences 

 

Where representations have 

been received and not 

withdrawn 

Where no representations 

received/ representations 

have been withdrawn 

Application for a variation to a 

licence  

Where representations have 

been received and not 

withdrawn 

Where no representations 

received/ representations 

have been withdrawn 

Application for a transfer of a 

licence  

Where representations have 

been received from the 

Commission 

Where no representations 

received from the 

Commission 

Application for a provisional 

statement  

Where representations have 

been received and not 

withdrawn 

Where no representations 

received/ representations 

have been withdrawn 

Review of a premises licence  X  

Application for club gaming /club 

machine permits  

Where representations have 

been received and not 

withdrawn 

Where no representations 

received/ representations 

have been withdrawn 

Cancellation of club gaming/ club 

machine permits 
 X  

Applications for other permits   X 

Cancellation of licensed premises 

gaming machine permits 
  X 

Consideration of temporary use 

notice 
  X 

Decision to give a counter notice to 

a temporary use notice 
 X  

Page 44



27 

 

APPENDIX B  LIST OF CONSULTEES 

Alex Burghart MP 
Association of Multiple Licensed Retailers 
Attwater Jameson Hill Solicitors 
Bay Restaurant Group 
Bryan Cave Leighton Paisner Solicitors  
Betting Offices 
British Transport Police 
Roman Catholic Church 
Chigwell and Hainault Synagogue 
Child Protection Essex County Council 
Church of England 
Citizens Advice Bureau 
Consumers Association 
Campaign to Protect Rural England 
Curwens Solicitors 
Council for Voluntary Services 
Community Safety Partnership 
East Herts DC 
EFDC Councillors  
EFDC Senior Officers 
Eleanor Laing MP 
Environment agency 
Epping Forest Conservators 
East of England Ambulance Service NHS Trust 
Essex Coalition for Disabled Group 
Essex County Council 
Essex Fire & Rescue 
Essex Police Service 
Essex Probation Service 
Essex Tourist Bodies 
Federation of Synagogues 
Federation of Licensed Victuallers Association 
 

Fosket Marr Gadsby & Head 
Gambling Commission 
GamCare 
Greene King 
Health and Safety Executive Essex 
HM Customs and Excise 
HM Revenue & Customs  
Jarmans Solicitors 
Lea Valley Regional Park Authority 
Local Chambers of Commerce 
Local Council Liaison Committee  
Local Round Tables 
Mcmullens Brewery 
Methodist Church 
Mitchells & Butlers Brewery 
Other Faith Groups 
Parish and Town Councils 
Princess Alexandra NHS Trust 
Punch Taverns 
Robert Halfon MP 
Rural Community Council of Essex 
Spirit Group Retail Ltd  
Town Centre Partnerships 
Union of Shop, Distributive and Allied Workers 
Unison 
Unite 
West Essex CCG 
Whiskers & Co Solicitors 
All current gambling premises within the district 
 

 

  

Page 45



28 

 

APPENDIX C    RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY’S FOR GAMBLING ACT 2005 APPLICATIONS 

Epping Forest District Council 
Civic Offices 
High Street 
Epping 
Essex 
CM16 4BZ 
Attn:  Licensing Unit 
Tel: 01992 564034 
licensing@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  

Head of Child Protection 
(Licensing Applications ) 
Quality Assurance & Safeguarding Service 
Family Operations 
Essex County Council 
70 Duke Street 
Chelmsford 
Essex 
CM1 1YS 
licenceapplications@essexcc.gov.uk  

The Licensing Department (alcohol) 
Essex Police 
Braintree 
Essex 
CM7 3DJ 
Tel : 01245 452035 
 
licensing.applications@essex. police.uk  

Gambling Commission 
Victoria House 
Victoria Square 
Birmingham 
B2 4BP 
info@gamblingcommision.gov.uk 

Essex Fire & Rescue Service 
South West Group Service Delivery 
Point Fire Station 
Broadmayne 
Basildon 
Essex 
SS14 1EH 
Tel: 01376 576700 
Email: southwestgroupSDP@essex-fire-gov.uk 
  
 

HM Revenue & Customs 
The Proper Officer 
HMRC Banking 
St Mungos Road 
Cumbernauld 
Glasgow 
G70 5WY 
 

Director of Planning 
Civic Offices 
High street  
Epping 
Essex 
CM16 4BZ 
Tel: 01992 564514 
Email:  contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
 

Public Health Unit 
Civic Offices 
High Street 
Epping 
Essex 
CM16 4BZ 
Brian Stalabrass – Business and Corporate 
Team Manager, Commercial and Regulatory 
Service Directorate 
Tel:01992 564058 
Email: bstalabrass@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 
 

 

 
 

Page 46

mailto:licensing@eppingforestdc.gov.uk
mailto:licenceapplications@essexcc.gov.uk
mailto:licensing.applications@essex.%20police.uk
mailto:info@gamblingcommision.gov.uk
mailto:planning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk
mailto:bstalabrass@eppingforestdc.gov.uk


Chairman’s Events January/February 

Date Event Venue Attending 

Friday 
7 February 

Grand VIP Opening  
Lambwood Heights Care 
Home, Chigwell 

Chairman 

Friday 
7 February 

Essex Wing Air 
Training Corps 
Presentation Evening 

Anglia Ruskin University, 
Chelmsford 

Chairman 

Friday 
7 February 

Broxbourne Charity 
Quiz Night 

Bishop’s College, 
Broxbourne 

Vice Chairman 

Wednesday 
12 February 

Essex & Herts Air 
Ambulance ‘Breaking 
Ground Ceremony’ 

North Weald Airfield Chairman 

Wednesday 
12 February 

Celebrate Harlow Event Harlow Playhouse Chairman 

Friday 
14 February 

Uttlesford Civic Dinner 
Saffron Walden Town 
Hall 

Chairman 

Saturday 
22 February 

Mad Hatters Tea Party 
Great Dunmow Town 
Council 

Chairman 

Wednesday 
4 March 

Time for a Cuppa 
Queens Court Nursing 
Home 

Chairman and Vice 
Chairman 

 

Page 47

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

Notification of Call-In of Portfolio Holder Decision under Paragraphs 45-
52 of Article 6 (Overview & Scrutiny) of the Constitution 

 
This form must be signed and completed and the original returned to the 
Proper Officer in person no later than the fifth working day following the 

publication of the decision to be called-in 
 

Decision to be called-in: 
 

Decision reference: 
 

Portfolio: 
 

Description of decision: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Reason for call-in 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Members requesting call-in  

(3 members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee or 5 other members) 
 

Members Name: Signed: 

Lead member:  

  

  

  

  

Office Use Only: Date Received: 
 

Page 49

Agenda Annex



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Clifton Road Loughton Parking Suspension
	5 North Weald HMRC Update
	6 Consultation on Statement of Principles Under The Gambling Act 2005
	Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy Jan 2020 jn amend (002) Final Draft

	7 Chairman's Diary
	 Portfolio Holder Decisions

